
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Public Services Reform Policy and 
Accountability Committee

Agenda
Tuesday 18 June 2019 

7.00 pm
Courtyard Room - Hammersmith Town Hall

MEMBERSHIP

Administration Opposition
Councillor Rowan Ree (Chair)
Councillor Christabel Cooper
Councillor Guy Vincent
Councillor Zarar Qayyum

Councillor Dominic Stanton

CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott
Committee Co-ordinator
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8753 2063
E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk

Public Notice
Members of the press and public are welcome to attend this and all other Council 
meetings.

Agendas for all public meetings are available on the Council’s website: 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees

A loop system for hearing impairment is provided, along with disabled access to the 
building.

Date Issued: 10 June 2019

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Public Services Reform Policy and Accountability Committee
Agenda – 18 June 2019

Item Pages

1.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 4 - 10
To approve the minutes of the previous meeting and note any matters 
arising.

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
To note any apologies for absence or lateness.

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether 
or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other 
significant interest which they consider should be declared in the public 
interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a sensitive interest 
as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the interest at the 
commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it becomes 
apparent.

Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and speak, 
then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should withdraw from 
the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. Councillors who have 
declared other significant interests should also withdraw from the meeting if 
they consider their continued participation in the matter would not be 
reasonable in the circumstances and may give rise to a perception of a conflict 
of interest.

Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a dispensation 
to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions and Standards 
Committee.

4.  CO-PRODUCTION IN HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 11 - 18
This report sets out the progress made achieving the Council’s 
commitment to working with Disabled residents to remove barriers and 
make Hammersmith & Fulham a more inclusive borough to live and 
work in.

5.  INTRODUCING THE NEW PUBLIC SERVICES REFORM 
DEPARTMENT 

19 - 37

Officers will give a presentation on the services within the new 
department and their priorities for the year.

6.  BRIEFING ON THE ZERO BASED BUDGETING AND EFFICIENCY 
PROGRAMME 

38 - 47

This item introduces the Zero Based Budgeting and Efficiency 
Programme – a new approach to budget setting for the Council.





_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

.
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Public Services Reform 
Policy and 

Accountability 
Committee

Minutes
Tuesday 29 January 2019

PRESENT

Committee members: Councillors Sharon Holder (Chair), Christabel Cooper, 
PJ Murphy, Guy Vincent and Dominic Stanton

Other Councillors: Adam Connell (Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform)

Officers:
Lisa Redfern (Strategic Director for Social Care and Public Services Reform)
Nick Kimber (Strategic Lead, Public Services Reform)
Julia Copeland (Head of Strategic Commissioning, Housing)
Karen Sullivan (Assistant Director for Residents' Services)
Jane Sheehan (Resident Experience Manager)
Anita Parkin (Director of Public Health)
Mark Grimley (Director for Corporate Services) 
Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Director of Finance and Governance)
Emily Hill (Assistant Director of Corporate Finance) 
David Abbott (Scrutiny Manager)

1. MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING 

Implementation of the new HR and Payroll System
Mark Grimley (Director for Corporate Services) gave an update on the new HR and 
Payroll system that replaced BT Agresso. There had been a successful launch in 
December. Change management and data cleansing had gone better than expected. 
The first pay run was fully compliant -  except for 5 staff (which was better than the 
previous supplier had ever achieved). Due to the successful implementation the 
intensive support period had been closed early and the project overall came in £500k 
under budget. There was a better adoption rate for the new channel and self-service. 
The system had a satisfaction rate of 97 percent 'good' or above.

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

There was still a lot to do in relation to remediation and there was a team dedicated 
to that. A programme board was in place to get to the end of the tax year.

Councillor Guy Vincent congratulated officers on the successful implementation. He 
then asked if the pensions arrangements had been as successful. Mark Grimley said 
IBC (the new supplier) were confident the correct pensions deductions were being 
made. Progress on transferring the pension scheme from Surrey County Council 
would be reported to the next Pensions Sub-Committee. 

Councillor PJ Murphy asked if the correct payments had been made to pensioners. 
Mark Grimley said the pensioner payroll had completed with 100 percent accuracy. 
Councillor Murphy asked Mark to thank the team on behalf of the Committee.

The Staff Survey
The Chair asked for an update on the staff survey and any findings to date. Mark 
Grimley said the figures had recently gone to SLT and HR were now preparing a 
pack that would be reported back to members. He noted that the survey contained 
no surprises – it was clear that staff wanted to see more investment in development, 
staff care about the work they do and care about the borough. There were issues 
around leadership and management and there are programmes in place to deal with 
these points. Another area of focus was wellbeing and HR were thinking about how 
to support staff with new ways of working coming shortly. Mark Grimley said he could 
report back with an action plan and the results of the survey to a future meeting.

Councillor PJ Murphy asked if the leadership development programmes were being 
funded by the apprenticeship levy. Mark Grimley said they partly were – and also 
through internal promotions.

Family Support
Lisa Redfern (Strategic Director for Social Care and Public Services Reform) noted 
that, since the last meeting an improvement board had been put in place with CLCH 
and Family Support. There were significant improvements with CLCH and officers 
were now proposing to keep them as provider until 2021. There was no appetite to 
move that function to Family Support at this stage. Anita Parkin was working on a 
review of Family Support.

Councillor Guy Vincent said there was still a question over the original concept for 
Family Support, especially given the CLCH contract was not moving over to it. Lisa 
Redfern said officers were not ready to make a decision about the future of the 
service. They were regularly reviewing progress with Councillors Adam Connell, 
Larry Culhane, and Ben Coleman (Cabinet Members for Public Services Reform, 
Children's Services, and Health and Adult Social Care respectively). 

Councillor Christabel Cooper asked why opinion had changed on CLCH delivering 
the service. Was the Council accepting a lower level of service because they waived 
a big increase in contract fees? Lisa Redfern said there wasn't sufficient contract 
management in place before. The Council should have been tightly monitoring the 
impact to ensure high quality services. Anita Parkin (Director of Public Health) added 
that the Council had a much more targeted Public Health function now and could 
properly monitor the contract.

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Councillor PJ Murphy asked when the original contract was put in place. Anita Parkin 
said the contract was 'lifted and shifted' from the NHS in 2015. At that time the lead 
authority was Westminster City Council as part of the tri-borough arrangements. 
Councillor Murphy noted his concerns that so many contracts from that time hadn't 
had the required rigour.

The Chair asked for an update on this situation at the next meeting.

ACTION: Lisa Redfern / Anita Parkin
RESOLVED
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record and were 
signed by the Chair.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillor Max Schmid (Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Commercial Services).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

4. SPECIALIST HOUSING 

Nick Kimber (Strategic Lead) and Julia Copeland (Head of Strategic Commissioning, 
Housing) presented the report which provided an update on the Council’s approach 
to specialist housing. The report set out the Council’s strategic ambition to reform the 
local authority’s investment, refocusing this towards prevention and recovery.

Nick Kimber gave an overview of the key points in the report, noting that:
 The Council currently spent £11.5m from its revenue budget on 

commissioning community and voluntary sector care and support providers to 
provide housing management and care in 599 bed spaces across 69 buildings.

 The provision supports six principal groups of residents: care leavers and 
young people, residents with mental health conditions, rough sleepers, older 
people in extra care provision, survivors of domestic abuse, and residents with 
learning disabilities

 The key principle informing the new approach is the need to provide the right 
home with the right support at the right time as the basis to improve outcomes 
for residents. This recognises the central role that housing plays in supporting 
people to maintain their autonomy, enabling them to stay in a home of their 
own, or recover from a crisis before living fully independently again.

 He gave the example of a 6-bed house in Fulham that was now being 
developed into provision for the care leaver pathway. Once developed, the 
house would be £110 cheaper per resident per week than existing alternatives.

 Officers were currently reviewing existing provision and the recommissioning 
of provision would be going for Cabinet approval at the end of April (2019), with 
the new provision in place by April 2020.

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Councillor Guy Vincent asked if the £11.5m revenue (3.2 of the report) would all be 
coming from the PSR budget – or elsewhere. Nick Kimber said the money would be 
coming from the Public Services Reform, Children's Services, and Adult Social Care 
departmental budgets.

Councillor Vincent asked if the purpose of this new approach was primarily to save 
money. Nick Kimber responded that it was primarily to improve outcomes. The new 
approach would enable the Council to respond to increasing demand, the need for a 
wider range of placements and the changed policy context including the aspiration 
for co-production that came out of the Disabled People's Commission. It would also 
help the Council meet the financial challenges of rising demand. Better provision 
would allow people to recover and move into independent tenancies more quickly.

Councillor Vincent said his worry was that this was being driven by budget pressures 
rather than good practice. Lisa Redfern said there were no plans to reduce the 
budget in this area. This approach was about improving the supply of appropriate 
housing - institutional settings should only be for the minority.

Councillor Christabel Cooper asked if moving away from block contracts to more 
flexible supply would be more costly. Julia Copeland responded by saying there 
would be a mix - for some areas like homelessness block contracts might be the best 
approach – but other situations require more personalised provision. Officers were 
looking at a 'core and flexible' model.

Councillor PJ Murphy asked how officers would be measuring success in this area.
Nick Kimber said officers would be working over the next few months to develop 
success measures. They were currently at the beginning of analysing the system 
and developing a performance framework for it. Councillor Murphy and the Chair 
asked for an update on these measures by the next meeting.

ACTION: Nick Kimber

Councillor Murphy asked if there were any residents on the board. Nick Kimber said 
there weren't at present – but there were plans to expand it soon.

RESOLVED
1. That the Committee reviewed and commented on the report.
2. That officers would provide an update on success measures by the next 

meeting.

5. CUSTOMER CARE AND COMPLAINTS 

Karen Sullivan (Assistant Director of Residents' Services) and Jane Sheehan 
(Resident Experience Manager) presented the report that gave an overview of the 
Council's approach to the way staff respond to and support residents with their 
contacts to the organisation. The report also provided an overview of complaints, 
what the InTouch and Customer Relationship Teams do, recent performance figures, 
key findings, and plans for future improvements.

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Councillor PJ Murphy noted that the figures in the report didn't really give a sense of 
how the Council was performing. He asked officers to include comparative data in 
future.

Councillor Murphy said it was a red-flag that responses to Councillors and MP 
enquiries went into an unmonitored email inbox. There should be a response 
mechanism in place. Karen Sullivan noted that since that issue was recognised 
officers were manually picking up responses and the emails that went to residents do 
signpost to a monitored inbox. Councillor Murphy also noted that, in his experience, 
the timescales of 8 working days, were rarely met. He felt the data in the report didn't 
match the reality on the ground.

Councillor Christabel Cooper, noting the figure of 72 percent of members enquiries 
responded to within the timescales, asked if officers were counting holding emails as 
'responses'. Karen Sullivan said holding emails weren't counted. She went on the 
say that the team was carrying out a system review and a new online system was 
being implemented with better self-serve and monitoring features.

Councillor Christabel Cooper asked what the target was for resident enquiries. 
Officers said the target was 15 working days, which was achieved 82 percent of the 
time.

Councillor Cooper asked if a resident wrote in to say they hadn’t got through to 
speak to someone after four rings – would that be treated as complaint. Karen 
Sullivan said it would, department should log that with the complaints team.

The Chair noted that her experience was fairly poor. She felt it would be useful for 
members to gather some evidence and put it to the complaints team to see if they 
could resolve some of the issues raised.

The Chair asked when the draft vision for improving the way residents access 
Council services would be finalised and shared. Officers said it was going to SLT for 
sign-off in February. The vision had been developed in consultation with a number of 
Cabinet Members, other members of the Administration group, and Opposition 
Councillors.

The Chair asked for the vision to be shared with the Committee when it was 
finalised.

ACTION: Karen Sullivan

RESOLVED
1. That the Committee reviewed and commented on the contents of the report.
2. That officers would circulate the vision for improving the way residents access 

Council services with the Committee.

6. 2019 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 

Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Director of Finance and Governance) and Emily Hill 
(Assistant Director of Corporate Finance) presented the report that set out the 
budget proposals for the Public Services Reform and Corporate Services 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

departments. The report also included an update on proposed changes in fees and 
charges.

Hitesh Jolapara gave a presentation on the financial context the Council was in and 
the financial challenges it faced going forward. He noted that the Council had taken a 
42 percent real terms cut in its budget since 2010/11. In order to support services, 
the Council was proposing a 2.7 percent inflationary increase in council tax with a 
further freeze in future years.

Councillor Christabel Cooper asked what impact a hard Brexit would have on the 
Council's budget. Were contingencies in place for such an event? Hitesh Jolapara 
said in an event like a 'no deal' Brexit it was likely that sterling would fall and inflation 
would rise – so the cost of any contracts linked with inflation would go up. Labour 
markets would also likely be affected – the social care workforce for example was 
highly reliant on EU workers. Senior officers were regularly reviewing the risks of a 
wide range of Brexit scenarios and planning mitigations as best they could. The 
Council also had reserves to fund contingency measures if required.

Lisa Redfern and Emily Hill then gave a presentation on the Public Services Reform 
budget proposals. The department was proposing a net budget before capital and 
corporately managed budgets of £10.66m. The department was proposing savings 
of £0.75m in 2019/20 which would be achieved in the following ways:

 A departmental restructure.
 Adult Homelessness - Moving homeless residents from short-term hostel at 

Wood Lane into alternative provision.
 Older People - End of contract at Bishops Creighton House, with provision 

provided instead in sheltered housing and other community provision.

Councillor Guy Vincent, referring to the figures in table 11, asked how the figures 
compared with last year. Officers noted that the Public Services Department was 
created as part of the Moving On process – with some funding from Social Care, 
Children's Services, and Public Health moving directly over to the department.

Members asked if the figures on income (£0.7m) were optimistic – was there risk 
there? Officers said the department had 'reset' its expectations on commercial 
income since the previous budget to be more realistic. Lisa Redfern noted that a lot 
of work had been done on advertising for example, and officers were confident that 
with the contracts they had in place they would achieve the stated income. Officers 
had been working to take the risk out of the budget process this year, it was a much 
more rigorous process.

Members asked what the £1.8m in growth for the Business Intelligence Unit was for. 
Hitesh Jolapara said the Council was writing off the previous income targets for the 
service. The £1.8m was potential income not realised.

The Chair asked how the Council was progressing zero-based budgeting. Hitesh 
Jolapara said there were some areas where a zero-based approach had been taken 
– Residents' Services for example but there was still more work to be done. 
Councillor Adam Connell added that there had been a £500k investment to take 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

zero-based budgeting forward. Officers were currently focusing on priority areas - 
looking areas of spend more holistically.

Mark Grimley (Director for Corporate Services) gave a presentation on the Corporate 
Services department budget. He noted that the department was proposing savings of 
£0.33m in 2019/20 to be delivered through service rationalisation, commercialisation, 
and commissioning.

Councillor PJ Murphy said he was stunned to see staff turnover of 50 percent for 
people in their first year - and asked if there was an action plan to confront this 
problem. Mark Grimley said this was being tackled through the new people strategy 
and new systems in place e.g. exit interviews. Councillor Murphy asked for an action 
plan to be sent to the Committee. Members suggested this issue could be looked at 
in more detail at a future meeting. 

RESOLVED
1. Officers to provide comparative figures for next year.
2. Officers to provide the Committee with an action plan to tackle the high levels 

of turnover within the organisation.

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The date of the next meeting was noted as 3 April 2019.

Meeting started: 7.00 pm
Meeting ended: 9.20 pm

Chair

Contact officer: David Abbott
Scrutiny Manager
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8753 2063
E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk

Page 10



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham

PUBLIC SERVICES REFORM
POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE

18 June 2019

CO-PRODUCTION IN HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM

Report of the Cabinet Member for Public Service Reform – Councillor Adam 
Connell

Open Report

Classification: PAC Briefing
Key Decision: No

Consultation: None

Wards Affected: All

Accountable Director: Lisa Redfern, Strategic Director of Social Care

Report Author:
Tara Flood, Strategic Lead: Co-
production
(job share with Kevin Caulfield)

Contact Details:
Tel: 020 8753 2206
E-mail: tara.flood@lbhf.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. This report sets out the progress being made with regard to the 
implementation of co-production across the Council.

1.2. The H&F Co-production Implementation Group (HFCIG) is now meeting and 
the post of Strategic Lead for Co-production has been recruited to as of April 
2019 so there is now real focus in terms of developing a workplan to achieve 
the Council’s commitment to working with Disabled residents to remove 
barriers and make Hammersmith & Fulham a more inclusive borough in which 
to live and work. 

1.3. The priority work areas identified by the Disabled People’s Commission have 
progressed. For example, two hundred frontline staff in Adult Social Care 
have now received Disability Equality Training, delivered by Inclusion London. 
There will be an analysis of the feedback shortly to capture the learning 
impact. In terms of the West King Street redevelopment work, the plans, 
which reflect some inclusive design principles thanks to the co-production with 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



the Disabled Residents Team, have now been approved by the Planning and 
Development Control Committee. 

1.4. The role of Strategic Lead for Co-production is unique in that it is the first role 
of its kind in the country. It is the job of the Strategic Lead for Co-production to 
provide leadership, strategic development and day to day project & 
operational management of the HFCIG’s delivery of its work priorities across 
all Council departments and the Borough more generally. 

1.5. A workplan is being drafted currently which will be signed off by the HFCIG. 
This is to ensure the HFCIG have ownership of the work, to keep the work 
focused on implementation of the DPC report recommendations, and to have 
a clear mechanism to monitor progress. 

1.6. Looking ahead, the focus for the work is to support the co-production already 
started in the DPC priority areas: Independent Living, the West King Street 
redevelopment, and the Disabled Peoples Housing Strategy. There also 
needs to be continued focus on building relationships both internally and 
externally so we can build support for Co-production. This means reaching out 
to all Council departments to encourage them to start thinking about how they 
could co-produce their work, and to community organisations who are crucial 
in building the capacity of local disabled people to become co-producers. The 
understanding about what Co-production means and how it is different from 
traditional approaches to engagement is still limited so there is a lot to do. It is 
National Co-production week in July, so this will be used as an opportunity to 
raise awareness about the Council’s commitment to Co-production and how 
this commitment is being realised. The Strategic Lead for Co-production will 
facilitate a ‘lunch and learn’ event for staff during the week focused on what 
Co-production is and why it is important. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1. That the Committee notes the progress made in the delivery of the early work 
that has started to roll out co-production across the Council, in line with the 8 
recommendations outlined in the Disabled People’s Commission report, 
published June 2018. 

3. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES 

3.1. The vision of the Hammersmith & Fulham Disabled People’s Commission was 
to set in place a new way of doing things that sees Disabled residents, 
councillors, council officers and other organisations in the borough working 
together to build a culture that values and respects the rights of Disabled 
people living and working in Hammersmith & Fulham, where "Nothing About 
Disabled People Without Disabled People" is at the heart of policy 
development and service design in this unique and diverse borough.

Page 12



3.2. Since the last report to the PSR PAC the new Hammersmith & Fulham Co-
production Implementation Group (HFCIG) has been set up and has met 
twice (in February and April 2019), with the next meeting planned for 2nd July 
2019. The membership of the HFCIG includes 4 Disabled residents, 4 
councillors (Cllr Connell, Cllr Quigley, Cllr Culhane & Cllr Coleman) and Lisa 
Redfern, Strategic Director, Social Care. As previously advised, the HFCIG 
will provide the leadership that will drive the implementation of the report’s 8 
recommendations and the vision.

3.3. The HFCIG is co-chaired by a Disabled resident and a councillor. It is still in 
its set-up phase but is due to sign off its Terms of Reference and a draft 
workplan at its next meeting.

3.4. A Strategic Lead for Co-Production post has been recruited to in the Public 
Services Reform department (PSR). Kevin Caulfield and Tara Flood were 
appointed in April and will job share this full-time post. The post is the first of 
its kind in the country and its role will be to facilitate and encourage co-
production across the Council. This will include the development of a co-
production framework and implementation of the HFCIG’s delivery plan. 

3.5. The work Disabled residents have been involved in so far, can best be 
described as ‘working towards co-production’, this is because the work on 
implementing the DPC’s recommendations has only just begun. The work set 
out below has seen Disabled residents being involved in decision making as 
strategies and programmes were being developed. 

West King Street Redevelopment

3.6. The Disabled Residents’ Team (DRT) continue to be very involved in detailed 
work around the West King Street redevelopment plans. The DRT continue to 
meet regularly with Proudlock Associates (Disabled person led access 
consultancy) along with the architects (Rogers, Stirk, Harbour and Partners), 
and housing and regeneration staff. The planning application, which included 
a high level of inclusive design, was submitted to the Planning and 
Development Control Committee and has been approved. This is a ground-
breaking initiative and the co-production work has now moved onto Phase 3 
of the redevelopment plans, which is focused on the internal fit-out. This will 
include co–producing the Inclusive Design and Access Statement (IDAS) and 
an Inclusive Access Management Plan (IAMP).

Disabled People’s Housing Strategy

3.7. The Disabled People’s Housing Strategy (DPHS) is making progress and the 
latest draft strategy was circulated at the end of May. The Strategic Lead for 
Co-production is now working with the DPHS lead in the Economy department 
to set up a steering group of Disabled residents to oversee the next stage of 
the work.

4.8. The Disability Forum Planning group, which has provided invaluable advice to 
the Economy department for many years free of charge on a range of 

Page 13



planning issues, have provided useful information concerning wheelchair 
adaptable and accessible housing regulations, which are being incorporated 
within the DPHS, which will ensure that LBHF is an exemplar in its approach 
to providing a range of accessible housing options to its Disabled residents.  

Independent Living Strategy

4.9. The DPC report recommends that the Council, as one of its priorities, 
develops an Independent Living Strategy, as defined by Disabled people. The 
Independent Living Strategy will cover all Disabled people of all ages.

4.10 The Strategic Lead for Co-production has drafted a new Independent Living 
Vision statement for the Council. This has been agreed by the relevant 
Director and Cabinet Member so now work needs to be done to operationalise 
the vision.

4.11 Following on from the RUILS (a Richmond-based Disabled person led 
organisation) review of the Council’s in-house direct payments service, the 
Adult Social Care (ASC) department is now focused on designing a new 
Direct Payments Support Service (DPSS) specification and discussions have 
started with Action on Disability (AOD) about delivering the new service. In 
light of some identified capacity issues it is likely that RUILS will be asked to 
assist AOD in the start-up phase of the new DPSS. The Strategic Lead for Co-
production is supporting this process and we hope that the new DPSS will be 
launched in the early autumn.

4.12 The ASC department has agreed to work with Disabled residents on the 
commissioning of a new British Sign Language (BSL) Live element of its 
Sensory Impairment Service. This vital new service will enable BSL users in 
the borough to communicate with frontline staff at the Council.

4.13 200 frontline ASC staff have now received Disability Equality Training (DET) 
with a further 2 DET sessions to be delivered in early June. The training is 
similar to that delivered to councillors in 2018. Inclusion London (a London-
wide Disabled person led organisation) has been contracted to deliver the 
training and early feedback is very positive. There will be an analysis of the 
training feedback done in late June, the findings of which can be shared with 
PSR PAC members. The Strategic Lead for Co-production will work with ASC 
staff to create opportunities for those staff who have been on the DET to think 
about using their learning to enhance existing work practices.

4. THE LEARNING SO FAR

4.1 It is important to highlight that the work to embed the Council’s commitment to 
the co-production of policies and services that impact on the lives of Disabled 
residents, with Disabled residents, is at a very early stage so it is crucial that 
the Strategic Lead for Co-production role takes its lead from the HFCIG in the 
development of a delivery plan that is strategic and ambitious in its timeframe.

Page 14



4.2 Induction meetings with senior management have identified a shared 
enthusiasm for making co-production happen, which is important, but there is 
a need to be clear and consistent about the definition of co-production and 
that it is different from the traditional approaches to engagement and 
consultation. It is essentially about doing things differently, more inclusively 
and accessibly.

4.3 Quick wins are required if council staff and the community are to remain 
positive about the possibilities of co-production. This means identifying a 
number of practical examples of existing work that could be refocused to 
incorporate co-production principles.

4.4 The Council has all the necessary strategic drivers in place such as the Vision 
commitment to ‘do things with residents not to them’ and the H&F Business 
Plan which states:

“We’ll put Disabled people at the heart of decision-making in H&F. Co-
production will lie at the heart of how we operate in future - nothing about 
Disabled people without Disabled people.”

Furthermore, the work of the Strategic Lead for Co-production and HFCIG is 
aligned to two of the PSR mission priority areas: ‘capability and cultural 
reform’ and ‘research and innovation’, ensuring that that co-production will be 
at the heart of PSR’s focus on transformation and change within the Council.

4.5 The work to implement co-production across the Council is being done within 
a financial context which requires the Council to find £50m in savings in the 
next four years. The Strategic Lead for Co-production is, therefore, working 
with the lead on Zero-based Budgeting to ensure that the focus on doing 
things differently and better has co-production at its heart. The DPC report 
highlighted the potential in cost saving if services are designed with residents 
because they are services that residents want. Co-production shouldn’t be 
seen as a luxury – it is an essential to realising the council commitment to 
‘doing things with residents not to them’. 

5. CONSULTATION

5.1. Working together with Disabled residents is at the heart of rolling out co-
production across the Council and activities related to this will feature in the 
forthcoming delivery plan.  

5.2. The Strategic Lead for Co-production is using the induction process to assess 
departmental understanding of co-production and to identify existing 
engagement and consultation opportunities that could be re-shaped to be 
more co-production focused. National Co-production week in July is also an 
opportunity to talk to staff and councillors about the Council’s commitment to 
co-production and the implementation plans.

Page 15



APPENDIX 1

Disabled Peoples’ Commission report - recommendations with measures of 
success. 

Recommendations Measure of success
(i) The articles of the UNCRPD and 
the social model of disability are being 
used as the foundation for the 
development of all policy with Disabled 
residents and are clearly reflected in 
council policies. 
(ii)The Council work plan includes 
work streams to embed a human 
rights and social model approach.
(iii)Co-production principles and 
practice are included in all Council 
work for example departmental 
business plans, project review 
processes, e learning, changes to 
publicity, staff recruitment, training, 
professional development, and 
management.

Creating a Co-Production culture 
Recommendation 1: The Council to 
implement a human rights approach to its 
policy and service development, using 
the UN Convention on the Rights of 
Persons with Disabilities (UNCRPD) as 
the framework for change.

(iv) Co-produced review of all 
monitoring and evaluation 
mechanisms and internal reporting 
processes e.g. independent review by 
Internal Audit and review and 
challenge by Public Accountability 
Committees, supported by an external 
peer review to maximise Co-
Production learning and improving 
processes. 
(i)The development of Co-Production 
with Disabled residents across all the 
Council’s work has been practically 
resourced and implemented.   
(ii) establish a Co-Production group of 
Disabled residents who work with the 
strategic director to turn the 
recommendations of this report into 
reality

Recommendation 2: The Council adopts 
and implements a policy which commits 
the Council to working in Co-Production 
with Disabled residents.

(iv) The hub has a strategic director 
who oversees the setting up and 
implementation of the Co-Production 
strategy and other recommendations 
in this report

Page 16



Recommendation 3: 
The Council develops and implements an 
accessible communication strategy that 
promotes the development of Co-
Production across the borough.  

Increased awareness of Co-
Production demonstrating solutions to 
Disabled people’s barriers locally.   

  (i)Changes in policy and services can 
be directly traced back to ideas 
initiated by Disabled residents through 
co-produced work.  

Training and development
Recommendation 4:
The Council with the Co-production Hub 
develop a strategy and resource its 
implementation to skill up and build the 
capacity of Disabled residents, local 
DPOs, staff and Councillors to participate 
in the Co-Production of policy and service 
development. 

(ii) Disabled residents, local DPOs and 
the Council report and evidence 
increased levels of engagement in 
council activity and decision making.    
(i) Evidence that a co-produced quality 
assurance and social value framework 
is produced and being implemented by 
commissioning and procurement.
(ii)Evidence the new quality assurance 
and social and economic value 
framework is changing the 
commissioning behaviour and/or 
outcomes from council contracts.
(iii) Co-produced service specifications 
for key priority services for Disabled 
residents are developed and 
implemented through the council’s 
grants, commissioning, and 
procurement processes. 
(iv) Contracts are developed and 
awarded that reflect co-produced 
specifications. 

Service design and commissioning
Recommendation 5: The Council to co-
produce a quality assurance and social 
and economic value framework, which 
will define the values, behaviours and 
characteristics of all service providers 
and organisations funded or 
commissioned by the Council.

(v) Review with Disabled residents 
existing contracts that are viewed by 
Disabled residents as creating 
barriers.   

Resourcing Co-production
Recommendation 6: Council to analyse 
existing financial expenditure and 
resources on all Co-Production, 
engagement, with Disabled residents to 
identify current expenditure and then 
reconfigure to develop a borough wide 

(i) A co-produced financial audit has 
been carried out on existing financial 
expenditure and other resources on all 
Co-Production, engagement, and 
consultation activities, including 
Resident Satisfaction Surveys with 
Disabled residents1 across the council, 

1 This includes services for people with impairments and long-term conditions and special educational needs

Page 17



health, and community sectors to 
ascertain levels of funding for 
consultation and engagement. 
Co-production budgets should be 
reflected in the Council’s the medium 
term financial strategy (MTSF).

Co-Production budget. 
  

(ii) The Co-production hub looks at the 
use of available resources to enable 
Disabled residents to lead on decision 
making. 
Resources will need to include staffing 
of sufficient seniority to co-lead the 
development and embedding of the 
Hub and its work across Council 
departments.
(i) A long term DPO funding strategy is 
agreed with DPOs and implemented 
by the Council.

(ii)DPOs are an effective, independent, 
and authentic voice of local Disabled 
residents, as well as effective 
providers of essential peer run 
services
(iii) The Council commissions DPOs to 
inform Disabled residents of their 
rights and assists Disabled residents 
to uphold and exercise their rights. 

Review and funding of Disabled 
People’s Organisations (DPOs) 
Recommendation 7: Recognising the 
unique role, values, and authentic voice 
of Hammersmith & Fulham Disabled 
People’s Organisations (DPOs) and their 
network, the Council works with them to 
identify and agree a long-term funding 
strategy, which will ensure that local 
Disabled residents’ rights are upheld, 
inclusion and equality advanced and that 
Disabled residents can lead on Co-
Production.
 (iv) Co-production activities will show 

that Disabled residents are leading on 
ideas and all elements of policy 
making and service development.  
(i)Hammersmith and Fulham Council 
can evidence the impact of a co-
produced approach to decision making 
and policy development with local 
Disabled residents; so, the experience 
of resident led Co-Production can 
benefit other communities both locally 
and nationally.

Independent Monitoring and 
evaluation
Recommendation 8: Carry out robust 
monitoring and evaluation of the 
implementation of the recommendations 
and associated Co-Production work to 
evidence the impact and share learning 
within and beyond Hammersmith and 
Fulham. (ii) Learning is disseminated at a 

regional and national level with 
relevant policymakers and government 
to demonstrate what can be achieved.

Page 18



PSR PAC 

Introducing the new PSR 

18th June 2019 

1

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 5



PSR Mission & leadership  

Six priority areas set by 

the Leader of the Council. 

ZBB 

Sharing 
Services

Assurance, 
Programmes

Capability & 
Cultural 
Reform

RFE

Analytics, 
R&I 

2

P
age 20



This pack

ZBB

Assurance & 
Programmes 

This pack provides introductions to 

divisions within PSR, as outlined below.   

Analytics, 
R&I

People & 
Talent 

Zero Based Budgeting

slides 5-7  

Assurance & Programmes People & Talent 

Analytics, Research & Innovation

slides 8-11

slides 12-15 

slides 16-19

3

P
age 21



Context slide - PSR structure 

Deputy Director 
(vacant)

Zero Based 
Budgeting 

Service Review 
Advisors 

Research & 
Innovation

Business 
Intelligence 

Research & 
Innovation (TBC)

Programmes & 
Assurance 

Head of PMO 

Chief Executives 
Office 

People & Talent 

HR Operations

People & Talent

Communications

External 
communications

Internal 
communications

Design & print 

Web team

• Strategy 
• Policy 
• Community Development 
• Co-production

Structure, to the right, 

created 1st May 2019.

During June 2019 

further functions will be 

incorporated: strategy; 

policy; community 

development & co-

production.

4

P
age 22



ZBB

Zero Based Budgeting 

Introduction

5

P
age 23



Programmes 
& Assurance

o What is Zero Based Budgeting (ZBB)?

o A fundamental shift from adjusting historical budgets to starting from a ‘zero position’ and reviewing

the outcomes they need to delivered how they can best do that.

o Reflects our focus on being ruthlessly financially efficient (RFE), the development of commercial

ventures and our wider vision and priorities.

o The business case for a new ZBB and Efficiency Programme

o A reduced level of efficiency savings and increased level of growth in recent years.

o A projected further reduction of funding from existing sources in the region of £50m over the 2020-2024 

medium term.  

o Statutory requirement to balance our  budget - alongside continued ambitions to deliver our vision and 

priorities for residents and avoid the need for cuts to vital services.  

6

P
age 24



Programmes 
& Assurance

o Delivery to Date  

o ZBB review model integrated into this years budget review process – for all services.  

o Rolling service review programme established with 11 reviews in Wave 1 initiated. 

o Specialist consultancy services commissioned to develop major business cases for customer contact and 

adults and children’s social care services.  

o On line insights system purchased to support benchmarking. 

o Assistant Director and Delivery Team recruited to.  

o Milestones and Governance

o First look at 2020/21 savings and pipeline options for the medium term presented to lead member 

challenge sessions in July 2019.

o Complete Wave 1 reviews, set out developed savings plan for 2020/21 and establish a  

programme of service transformation by end of October 2019.

o Strategic Leadership Team and Finance Board provide the monthly board and delivery 

team structures.  The programme is being aligned to co-production delivery structures.   
7

P
age 25



Programmes & Assurance  

Introduction

Programmes 
& Assurance

8

P
age 26



Programmes & Assurance

What is Programmes & Assurance?

• Brings together functions within PSR enabling centre – Chief Executive’s Office

(CEO) and Corporate Programme Management Office (PMO)

• Provides assurance on Council priorities, plans and major programmes and projects

• Corporate owner of the delivery of the Business Plan

• Drive performance management and improvement through insights and interventions

• Be a centre of excellence for programmes and change

• Responsible for the effective operation of the CEO and management boards

• Impact will be shown through realisation of Council priorities, business benefits and

outcomes for residents through performance improvement, assurance and practice

and system improvements

Assurance1

On delivery of Business 

Plan, major changes and 

strategies

Performance2

Measurement, alignment, 

insights & improvements

Standards3

Frameworks, systems, 

practices

Enabling4

Chief Executive priorities, 

PSR centre

Four drivers across Programmes & Assurance function

Programmes 
& Assurance

9

P
age 27



o Delivery of ambitions & 

priorities

o Business Plan realisation

o Maturation of framework to 

provide assurance

o Performance management 

& improvement

o Business planning, policy & 

horizon scanning 

o Information flows into 

top-team management 

boards

o Exploring automating 

parts of  performance 

framework

o Maturation of PMO

o Target Operating Model

o Assurance of delivery of 

major programmes/ projects

o Centre of excellence –

project methodology, 

frameworks, toolkits, 

community of practice

o Developing products 

across portfolio –

delivery plans, 

dependencies, benefits, 

risks, finances 

o Identifying lessons to 

improve practices

1. Assurance

2.
Corporate 

PMO

Delivery priorities for  2019-20

Programmes 
& Assurance

IBC programme closure – lessons

o PSR PAC received updates on 

this HR, payroll & finance 

system transition

o Live in Dec 18 & programme 

closed in Spring 2019

o Closure report prepared to 

identify achievements & lessons

o Programme achieved its 

objectives

o Lessons shared at Major 

Programmes Board – success 

factors included strong 

partnership working, 

governance structure, specialist  

resourcing and change 

approach

10

P
age 28



o Effective management of office

o Issue resolution of Chief

Executive priorities

o Servicing of Chief Executive

responsibilities

o Representing Chief Executive in

Council initiatives

o Management boards –

Strategic Leadership Team,

Statutory Accountabilities

Board, Business Delivery

Team

o Re-active and pro-active

work

o Enabling new PSR 

o PSR Operating Model

o Departmental objectives, 

workplans and artefacts

o Staff development & well-being

o Integration of PSR functions 

within PSR and 

o Business partnering 

arrangements

3.
Chief 

Executive’s 

Office

4.
PSR 

enabling

Delivery priorities for  2019-20

Programmes 
& Assurance

11

P
age 29



Analytics, 
R&I

Analytics, Research & Innovation

Introduction 

12

P
age 30



Research & Innovation

What is Research & Innovation? (R&I)  

• Division created in May 1st 2019 with a mission to equip the corporate centre for tomorrows council

• Aim to facilitate activities across the council that enable insight, smarter activity, strategic clarity, and

learning & improvement

• Its top two delivery priorities for 2019-20 are Analytics (known as Business Intelligence) and Innovation

• It will have a specific focus on the future, planning for and creating new approaches to council mission that

enable Hammersmith to be the best

• Its impact will be seen in the development of pipeline ideas into the future.

Analytics, 
R&I

13

P
age 31



• Stakeholder relationship management

• Networking & events 

• Business Development

• Corporate Social Responsibility 

• Statutory reporting assurance

across The Economy,

Children's, Housing, Adults &

Public Health

• Partner access to our population, 

data & ideas 

Prototyping test bed 

(3) Innovation eco system

• architects of social innovation eco system 

• role as funder 

• our Industrial Strategy 

(1) Insights (2) Ideation

• Platform, pipeline & appraisal 

Promoting social innovation

Business focus External focus

Ideas pipeline Partnerships

What we do. Research & Innovation. 

Statutory reports 

Strategic insight

• Solutions with financial benefits

e.g. cost avoidance, new

income etc.

• Strategic insight that assures, 

directs and disrupts 

Savings 

Innovation lab 

• Ideas generation 

• Supporting great ideas

• Methods  

Analytics, 
R&I

Innovative workforce

• Initiatives that enable an 

enterprising workforce 

14

P
age 32



o Data reports & information across

The Economy, Housing, Adults,

Children’s social care & Public Health

o Statutory reporting to central

government

o Key priority given the reputational &

financial risks associated with

service failure

o Savings - solutions to improve Council

services & deliver social and financial

benefits e.g. cost avoidance, savings

o Non- savings - Internal non- statutory

reporting that don’t necessarily deliver

cashable savings

o Critical given its significant potential

financial benefits

o Growth area to use analytics to

inform decision making and shape an

evidence based culture

o Solutions commoditized to generate

a net financial return through sales to

other Councils.

o Future approach to external sales

under construction

1.
Statutory 

work

2.

Internal 

non 

statutory 

work

External 

sales
3.

Analytics is made up of distinct activity groups: 

Analytics 

Analytics, 
R&I

15

P
age 33



People & 
Talent 

People & Talent

Introduction

16

P
age 34



People & 
Talent 

• Business Partnering with 

Directorates

• Advice and guidance to line 

managers

• Casework

• Relationship management with IBC 

on recruitment and pensions admin

• Schools HR team

• People metrics

People & Talent strategy – our service

• Learning and careers

• Resourcing and talent

• Organisation Development

• Policy

• Wellness Centre 

(Occupational Health)

HR Operations People & Talent

17

P
age 35



People & 
Talent 

Our focus

Your  

Experience

Our focus

Your  

Development

Our focus

Our  

Coaching and 

Leadership

Our focus

Our  

Organisation

Creating a 

comprehensive new 

offer for colleagues to 

enhance your 

experience at work

Creating 

opportunities for 

personal and 

professional 

achievement

Developing and 

growing outstanding 

leaders and coaches 

right across the 

workforce

Creating the right 

culture and 

environment for us to 

adapt, innovate and 

achieve

People & Talent strategy – our people 

18

P
age 36



People & 
Talent 

RESOURCING

Workforce planning

Recruitment

Employer brand

Apprentices

Talent management

Candidate experience

LEADERSHIP & 
MANAGEMENT

Fast track

World class manager

Top 30

Top 150

Mentoring

Coaching

ENGAGING FOR 
SUCCESS

Staff survey

Wellbeing

Equality & Diversity

Trade Union partnership

Staff networks

The line manager

HIGH PERFORMANCE 
CULTURE

Performance management

PRP

The way we do things

Get Ahead

Continuous learning

Star awards

People & Talent – our delivery plan 

19

P
age 37



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham

PUBLIC SERVICES REFORM
POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE

18 June 2019

BRIEFING ON THE ZERO BASED BUDGETING (ZBB) AND EFFICIENCY 
PROGRAMME

Report of the Cabinet Member for Public Service Reform – Councillor Adam 
Connell

Open Report

Classification: PAC Briefing
Key Decision: No

Consultation: None

Wards Affected: All

Accountable Director: Lisa Redfern, Strategic Director of Social Care

Report Author:
Martin Calleja, Assistant Director for 
Efficiency and Zero Based Budgeting

Contact Details:
Martin.Calleja@lbhf.gov.uk 

1. Introduction and Context 

1.1 Hammersmith and Fulham Council initiated a new corporate ZBB and 
Efficiency programme in March 2019.  The work is led by the Public Service 
Reform Department within the Chief Executives Directorate and is fully 
aligned to the council’s financial management framework led by Finance and 
Governance.   

1.2 This report provides an introductory briefing to the Committee and is 
supplemented by a set of appendices that provide some further detail.   

1.3     The committee is asked to consider the briefing and the key considerations for 
policy and scrutiny activity set out in section 7.

Page 38

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Martin.Calleja@lbhf.gov.uk


2. What does Zero Based Budgeting mean and how does it relate to 
efficiency savings? 

2.1 Traditionally the budget setting process involves reviewing and adjusting 
historical budgets.  This approach tends to limit change and cap ambitions for 
delivering efficiencies.  Zero based budgeting requires senior management 
teams to start from a ‘zero position’ and fundamentally reviewing what 
outcomes they need to deliver, how they can best do that - and then - set out 
what resources and budget is required.  

2.2 ZBB fundamentally challenges the status quo and calls for a transparent and 
evidence consideration of the relationship between spend and outcomes 
delivered.  If applied well and consistently across large complex organisations 
it can significantly help identify and deliver a much greater range and level of 
‘more for less’ efficiency opportunities. 

2.3 Our existing focus on being ruthlessly financially efficient (RFE) and the 
development of commercial ventures very much plays to the robust approach 
to resource management and bold development that is needed in taking a 
ZBB approach.  

3. What is the business case for this programme in Hammersmith & 
Fulham Council?

3.1 There are three main reasons for establishing this new programme of work;

 A reduced level of efficiency saving and increased level of growth in recent 
years.

 A projected further reduction of funding from existing sources in the region of 
£50m over the 2020-2024 medium term – mainly associated with further 
reductions in government settlement, levels of unavoidable increased 
demand for services and inflation. 

 Our statutory requirement to balance our budget alongside our continued 
ambitions to deliver our vision and priorities for our residents and avoid the 
need for cuts to vital services.  

3.2 Our vision and priorities are consistent with ZBB.  We are ruthlessly financially 
efficient which means challenging waste and old-fashioned thinking. Our 
vision also sets us apart as a different kind of council – creative, pioneering 
and relentlessly searching for better answers.     

4. What has been done to date?

4.1 Work to establish the new programme began in March this year since then 
arrangements have been made to translate the concept of ZBB to a practical 

Page 39



programme of delivery.  To support this work, Martin Calleja, assistant director 
for efficiency and ZBB, has now been appointed through our Get Ahead 
scheme. He is working closely with senior managers and is putting into place 
the framework, resources and support that will be needed to translate the ZBB 
concept to continued success in our ‘more for less’ journey.   

4.2 Key achievements to date include;

 The budget review process for this year will be anchored around a ZBB 
review model and detailed guidance.  All service leads will need to apply 
this model to provide a clear account of the value for money they are 
currently providing and a robust diagnostic of opportunities to improve it.  
This will be used to set out clear proposals for 2020/21 along with a view 
of options and possibilities for the whole medium term.  A first look is 
needed by the end of June this year - and a more detailed plan by the end 
of September.  [see appendix 1]

 A rolling programme of in-depth service reviews is now kicking off with the 
first wave of eleven service areas due for completion by the end of 
September 2019.  The programme includes major areas of the Council’s 
business including customer contact and transactional services, people 
and talent management and staff resources, commissioning and contract 
management and social care demand management.    [see appendix 2]  

 Some key principles and ways of working have been set out to support a 
corporate approach to this work – this will be developed further along side 
Directorate work so that a joined- up approach is taken.  [see appendix 3]  

 Specialist advisory services have been organised to support senior 
management teams to deliver the work in the areas of customer services 
and social care.

 An on-line insights system has been purchased to support value for money 
analysis including how spend levels and unit costs for a range of Council 
services compare to similar councils.  

 Options for a new partnering approach to continue to develop commercial 
interests and further improve income levels are being explored.

 Advice, support and assurance arrangements are being put into place that 
connect our ZBB and efficiency work to our recently established 
programme and project management office, research and innovation 
function and our system for meeting the Council’s commitment to co-
production.  These services along side People and Talent and 
Communications services form the new corporate Public Service Reform 
function.  

 A small team of two service review and business case development 
officers and a programme support officer have been recruited to and will 
start work in early June.    

5. What are the next steps and key milestones for 2019/20? 

5.1 The aim is to provide an initial indication and then solid plans for delivering 
2020/21 savings requirements of £17m by the end of June 19 and October 19 
respectively - along with a strategic plan, pipeline of business cases and 

Page 40



improved level of assurance for the further savings that are required over the 
medium term.  The delivery programme will then be developed further and 
through a second wave of service review programmes so that by the end of 
the financial year the focus of the programme will have shifted from review, 
analysis and planning to delivery.  

6. What governance arrangements have been put into place and how will 
cabinet be involved?

6.1 Strategic Leadership Team and Finance Board will provide the officer 
strategic board and management delivery group structures focusing on ZBB 
once a month. Heads of Finance will be joined by nominated lead Assistant 
Directors from each Directorate and representatives from HR, IT and 
Communications at the monthly management delivery group.

4.2 A core focus is a consideration of how Council’s developing system for 
resident co-production and implementation of resident led commissions will 
support continuing efficiency and improvement and lead major service 
redesign projects.   

4.3 The budget setting process has and will continue to be driven through lead 
member challenge sessions taking place in July and October each year.  The 
July sessions will provide a first look at ZBB review work and associated 
savings opportunities and commitments.   At this point monthly tracking of 
progress on detailed savings commitments and pipeline opportunities will be 
established across the 2020-2024 medium term.

4.4 Weekly conference calls are taking place with the lead members for public 
service reform and finance and commercial services to track progress with 
this work.  

4.5 For further details on our ZBB approach and the arrangements that are being 
put into place to support it go to the new ZBB page on the intranet.

7.      What are the implications for Policy and Scrutiny Committees – both 
within PSR PAC and beyond? 

7.1 Progress in delivering required savings and the wider mandate for ZBB, 
research and innovation and programme and project management are the 
responsibility of Finance and Governance and Public Service Reform PACs 
respectively.  These committees should ensure that their forward plans reflect 
the key milestones set out in 5.1 with some consideration to cross committee 
collaboration for scrutinising progress and challenges.

Page 41

https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-corporateservices/Pages/Zero-based-budgeting.aspx


7.2     The new ZBB and Efficiency approach puts the onus on Directorates and 
associated PACs across the Council to provide assurance and transparency 
on value for money and identifying and delivering all opportunities for 
delivering further efficiency savings as quickly as possible.  They are also the 
sponsoring leads for the ZBB service review programme.  As such forward 
plans for all PACs should ensure that the content and timing of associated 
scrutiny is appropriate.  

7.3 As detailed options, major business cases and delivery projects come 
together PACs will have vital role to play in both scrutinising and supporting 
change.  This will need to be facilitated in a way that recognises the need for 
change that takes account of the scale of continued savings that are required.  

Page 42



Appendix 1: High level overview the ZBB review model 

  

Stage 2:  Set Out Value for Money Context for the Service and its associated budget

Policy context 
including Statutory 

status and new 
national and local 

aspects 

Spend, income, 
activity levels and 
key management 

and unit costs

Trends and projections in 
performance, demand 

costs and savings 

Comparative position 
including VFM benchmarks, 
market options, trends, and 

innovations.  

Local needs, 
preferences, 
choices, and 

feedback

Quality, Outcome, 
value, and Return 

on Investment 
position 

Stage 1: Scope and Readiness for Review Assessment 

Stage 3:     Analysis and Review - Answer key questions, gather existing evidence and apply tests to provide additional evidence

Deliver More Efficiently Deliver Very Differently 

Deliver Less  

Stage 4b). Recommendations and Major 
Options for Change and Savings  

ZBB Plan

BAU Delivery 

Task and Finish 

Major Project 
and Business 
Cases

New Medium- 
Term Budget  

Stage 4a). Executive 
Summary: the right things 
to the right level, the right 

way at the right cost

Reduce Management Costs 

Improve processes & controls Better Manage Demand/Pathways

Design new operating model

Reprovide or recommission

New partnering arrangement/shared services

Re-define target/eligibility 

Commercial development 

Service cuts  

Contract renegotiation Digital Delivery

Lower cost alternatives Resolve under- utilisation  

Improve income/review charges 
Resolve low value services  

Improve productivity   

Consolidate common functions 

ZBB aims to avoid  

 End June 19 – 2020/21 Savings Proposals 
and first look plan

 End Sept 19 – consolidted plan including 
Wave 1 Service Reviews  

P
age 43



Appendix 2: Wave One: Initial Service Reviews: April 19 – September 19 

Service Leads Legacy review work already undertaken 
1. Moving on 

Disaggregation 
Environment
Matthew Hooper
Valerie Simpson

 Some aspects associated with disaggregation  

2. Customer Contact and In 
Touch 

Environment
Nichola Ellis 
Karen Sullivan

 Significant – major business case is being finalised 

3. HR, OD, and Staff 
Resource Management 

PSR
Dale Cox
Mark Keeble 

 Some aspects – long list of options for spend management has been produced

4. Communications PSR
Louise Raisey 
Geoff Cowart 

 Limited  

5. Adult Learning and 
Employment Services 

Economy
Joanne Woodward
Eamon Scanlon
Billy Seago 

  Significant – services are framed by detailed statutory returns and evaluation systems

6. Homelessness and 
Housing Solutions 

Economy 
Glendine Shepard 
Paul Cooper 

 Significant – area has been subject to restructure 

7. Commissioning, 
contracts, and 
Procurement 

Finance and Governance - in association 
with PSR, ASC and Children’s Services
Hitesh Jolapara 
Andra Ulianov

 Significant – through PSR development and EY analysis of contracted business

8. ASC Demand 
Management 

Social Care  
Lisa Redfern
Katie Estdale
 

 Significant – range of diagnostic work undertaken 

9. Children’s Services 
Demand Management 

Children’s Services 

Steve Miley
Katie Estdale

 Limited – although significant preparation and project working group set up for SEND 
services and spend 

10. Financial Management 
and Reporting 

Finance & Governance
Hitesh Jolapara 
Emily Hill

 Significant – through recent restructure 

11. Governance Finance and Governance  
Rhian Davies
Kayode Adewumi

 Significant – given small scale team and close relationship to the scrutiny structure and 
programme 

P
age 44



Appendix 3: Towards a New Operating Model for the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Some key strategic principles

Why do we need to prepare for a whole new operating model? We need to;

 Manage the reality of continued deficit reduction and austerity for the public sector, particularly local government.

 Look beyond salami slicing and tactical silo working to balance our books.

 Support and prepare for the ZBB budget and service review work that will be taking place this year. We need to ensure that the 
change agenda that is shaped to assure continued delivery of our vision and priorities and our financial viability is strategically 
driven and joined up.  

 Recognise that some decisions we will need to take will not be easy – this should act as a prompt to reconsider things from first 
principles.  What is our core purpose and how do we fit into the wider public sector?

 Understand why a wide range of the societal problems we have statutory responsibilities for and have invested in resolving have 
proven very resistant to interventions from public agencies.

 Own that trying to manage our situation without an overarching plan presents an unacceptable risk to our stability and our 
capacity to continue to represent and meet the interest of residents. 

Key Strategic Principle  What this means – we will: What this does not mean  – we will NOT;

P
age 45



Our overarching focus
Our focus is ensuring we 
have the capacity and 
financial stability to  
continue deliver our 
vision and priorities.

 Have a ruthless focus on financial efficiency
 Have a clear and transparent consideration of the cost and the value of the 

everything that we do.
 Have an appetite for change, risk, and reprioritisation - taking creative and 

pioneering approaches that are resident led.  

 Hold on to things that are fundamentally not 
working. 

 Think that we can continue to balance our 
books simply by doing more of what we have 
done before. 

 Be able to re-invest all money that is not well 
spent – most of it will need to be banked as 
savings.  

Improved efficiency will be the focus for delivering further savings in 2020/21……….
We will identify and 
deliver all opportunities 
for greater efficiency, 
productivity, quality and 
value for money – 
ensuring we pay a fair 
price for services  
whether they are 
delivered in house or 
through commissioned 
services.  

 Set the budgets and price we pay for services by taking a Zero-Based 
Budgeting approach.  This will be led by market intelligence and 
benchmarks, good design and quality - focusing on the things that matter 
the most to staff, residents, businesses, and partners. 

 Take a strategic and long-term view of how we will obtain the very best 
value for all our services.  This includes taking a whole view of our business,  
investing in major re-design and recommission projects and partnering 
arrangements to deliver vital outcomes for less money.  

 Relentlessly identify and manage out inefficiencies and under performance 
using the same rigorous approach across all our services.  We will take 
immediate action to deliver improvements as quickly as possible and will 
not tolerate any undue delay. 

 Expect all providers of services to take full ownership and accountability for 
this responsibility and develop our internal management, commissioning, 
and procurement system - including incentives and penalties – to do so.

 Put an increasing emphasis on the added value that services, partners, local 
businesses and voluntary sector and community groups can deliver 
including; additional income and resources, social capital, reducing 
inequalities and contributions to corporate outcomes.  In this context we 
will demonstrate and champion the added value and good return on 
investment that direct delivery of services can achieve.  

 Establish a better commissioning, procurement and contract management 
system that enables delivery of efficiency, good outcomes and added value 
and provides an effective and low-cost compliance and monitoring solution. 

 Reduce prices at the cost of the vital quality 
and outcomes that we need.

 Use high levels of effort to deliver small scale 
savings that are not consistent with larger 
scale opportunities. 

 Tolerate protracted delays and negotiations 
for delivering better value.

 Pay twice for the management of poorly 
performing contracted services.

 Keep all the procurement and contract 
monitoring standards and systems that we 
have.  

 Tolerate delaying action on clear 
inefficiencies and arrangements that do not 
reflect good value for money.  

 Rule out the outsourcing  or bringing back in-
house service – if the business case is 
compelling.

 Delay evoking penalties and, if required 
termination for poorly performing contracts. 

…along with the work that is required to successfully deliver the transformational change that will be needed for the medium- 
term

P
age 46



Key Strategic Principle  What this means – we will: What this does not mean – we will NOT;
We will re-design and re-
organise how we deliver, 
commission, and fund 
our front line and back 
office services over the 
next three years. 

 Bring together and consolidate services and contracts that have shared 
functions and significant opportunities for digital development, resource 
sharing, greater efficiency, and improved outcomes.

 Take demand management and preventative approaches, systems, and 
services to a new level of performance particularly for adults and children’s 
social care services.  In doing so we will significantly improve our return on 
investment, our residents experience, and the life chances of those in most 
need. 

 Systematically review all staff resources to ensure that we have the right 
capacity and capability that we need whilst significantly reducing costs.  

 Manage change carefully and fairly and go the extra mile to support staff 
affected by change.  

 We will strategically manage all our funding streams to deliver better value 
for money and help managing the impact of continuing large-scale 
reductions on the available general fund. 

 Build plans for change that are not supported 
by good analysis, project management and 
reference to what has worked well 
elsewhere. 

 Assume that we will have the same level of 
funding available to develop new service 
offers.

 Make changes to structures and contracts 
without careful consideration of risks, 
disbenefits and consultation requirements. 

We will be an enabling 
pioneering and creative 
partner that puts the 
benefits of local 
economic development 
at the forefront of this 
work.  

 We will aim to maintain and if possible increase investment and support 
levels in the third sector and community groups by strengthening our 
partnering approach and looking to maximise their role in delivering local 
services and outcomes.  

 We will work towards the design of low and no cost service solutions for 
services that are provided on a discretionary basis and/or have significant 
potential to develop their commercial service offer.  

 We will use all our land,  assets, market leverage and potential for 
commercial enterprise to diversify and increase our available budget, better 
manage resources and develop our organisation. 

 That we can guarantee direct funding levels 
at this stage.  

 Offer poor substitutes for vital services and 
outcomes. 

 Pursue opportunities and relationships that 
are not aligned to market realities, have poor 
prospects of success, and/or are not 
supported by the required investment.  

P
age 47


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Co-production in Hammersmith & Fulham
	5 Introducing the new Public Services Reform Department
	6 Briefing on the Zero Based Budgeting and Efficiency Programme

